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Compliance Board upon receipt of any
complaint alleging that a building or
facility that is subject to the Architec-
tural Barriers Act of 1968, as amended
(42 U.S.C. 4151–4157), is not readily ac-
cessible to and usable by individuals
with handicaps.

(g) Within 180 days of the receipt of a
complete complaint for which it has ju-
risdiction, the agency shall notify the
complainant of the results of the inves-
tigation in a letter containing—

(1) Findings of fact and conclusions
of law;

(2) A description of a remedy for each
violation found; and

(3) A notice of the right to appeal.
(h) Appeals of the findings of fact and

conclusions of law or remedies must be
filed by the complainant within 90 days
of receipt from the agency of the letter
required by § 15e.170(g). The agency
may extend this time for good cause.

(i) Timely appeals shall be accepted
and processed by the head of the agen-
cy.

(j) The head of the agency shall no-
tify the complainant of the results of
the appeal within 60 days of the receipt
of the request. If the head of the agen-
cy determines that additional informa-
tion is needed from the complainant,
he or she shall have 60 days from the
date of receipt of the additional infor-
mation to make his or her determina-
tion on the appeal.

(k) The time limits cited in para-
graphs (g) and (j) of this section may be
extended with the permission of the
Assistant Attorney General.

(l) The agency may delegate its au-
thority for conducting complaint in-
vestigations to other Federal agencies,
except that the authority for making
the final determination may not be
delegated to another agency.

[58 FR 57697, 57699, Oct. 26, 1993, as amended
at 58 FR 57697, Oct. 26, 1993]

§§ 15e.171—15e.999 [Reserved]

PART 15f—ADJUDICATIONS UNDER
SECTION 741

Subpart A—What Is The Purpose Of These
Regulations And To Whom And To
What Programs Do They Apply?

Sec.
15f.1 What is the purpose of these regula-

tions?
15f.2 Who may use these procedures for

processing their discrimination com-
plaint with USDA?

15f.3 If I want to use these procedures to
have USDA consider my complaint, how
long will it take for USDA to make a de-
cision?

15f.4 What do certain words and phrases in
these regulations mean?

Subpart B—I Filed A Complaint With USDA
Prior To July 1, 1997, How Do I Request
That USDA Consider My Complaint
Using These Procedures?

15f.5 How do I request that USDA consider
my complaint under these procedures?

15f.6 What must I say or include in my Sec-
tion 741 Complaint Request?

15f.7 May I be represented by an attorney?

Subpart C—What Happens After I Send In
My Request? May I Seek to Resolve
My Complaint Informally With OCR?

15f.8 What does the Docketing Clerk do
with my request?

15f.9 What will the Director do to settle my
Section 741 Complaint Request when it is
received?

15f.10 What if I do not want the Director to
review my Section 741 Complaint Re-
quest and I want to proceed directly to a
hearing?

Subpart D—If I Request A Hearing, What
Will Happen? How Will The Hearing Be
Conducted?

15f.11 Where must I file a hearing request
and what happens to it?

15f.12 Am I entitled to a hearing in all cir-
cumstances?

15f.13 What is the function of the ALJ and
who may communicate with him?

15f.14 What happens after I file a request for
a hearing?
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15f.15 What Happens after the Docketing
Clerk notifies all parties?

15f.16 Although I request a hearing, may I
request the ALJ to issue a decision with-
out a hearing?

15f.17 What happens before the hearing?
15f.18 May I depose potential witnesses?
15f.19 Other than myself, OCR, and the

agency, may any other interested party
participate in the proceeding?

15f.20 May I subpoena witnesses to the hear-
ing?

15f.21 What rules are applicable to the ac-
tual conduct of the hearing?

15f.22 What happens after the hearing?
15f.23 What will constitute the record for

the final determination?
15f.24 When and in what form will a final

determination be made on my complaint
by USDA?

15f.25 Will USDA pay my attorneys fees if I
win?

Subpart E—What If I Do Not Agree With The
Final Determination By USDA?

15f.26 May I seek judicial review of the final
determination?

Subpart F—How Do I Count Days For Pur-
poses Of Deadlines And What Hap-
pens If I Miss A Deadline In These
Rules?

15f.27 When is something considered ‘‘filed’’
as required by these rules and to whom
do I need to give copies of what I file?

15f.28 When I or someone else has to do
something within a certain number of
days, how will USDA or the ALJ count
the days?

15f.29 May I request an extension of a dead-
line or may I get relief for missing a
deadline in these rules?

AUTHORITY: 5 U.S.C. 301; section 101(a) of
Pub. L. 105–277, 112 Stat. 2681; Reorganization
Plan No. 2 of 1953 (5 U.S.C. App.).

SOURCE: 63 FR 67394, Dec. 4, 1998, unless
otherwise noted.

Subpart A—What Is The Purpose
Of These Regulations And To
Whom And To What Programs
Do They Apply?

§ 15f.1 What is the purpose of these
regulations?

These regulations provide the rights
of complainants and the procedures for
the processing of certain nonemploy-
ment related complaints alleging dis-
crimination by USDA that were filed
with USDA prior to July 1, 1997, as au-
thorized under section 741(b) of the Ag-

riculture, Rural Development, Food
and Drug Administration, and Related
Agencies Appropriations Act, 1999, en-
acted in Division A, section 101(a) of
the Omnibus Consolidated and Emer-
gency Supplemental Appropriations
Act, 1999, Pub. L. 105–277.

§ 15f.2 Who may use these procedures
for processing their discrimination
complaint with USDA?

A person may use these procedures if
he or she filed a nonemployment relat-
ed discrimination complaint with
USDA prior to July 1, 1997, that alleged
discrimination by USDA at any time
during the period beginning January 1,
1981 and ending December 31, 1996 :

(a) In violation of the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act (15 U.S.C. 1691 et seq.)
in administering—

(1) A farm ownership, farm operating,
or emergency loan funded from the Ag-
ricultural Credit Insurance Program
Account; or

(2) A housing program established
under title V of the Housing Act of
1949; or

(b) In the administration of a com-
modity program or a disaster assist-
ance program.

§ 15f.3 If I want to use these proce-
dures to have USDA consider my
complaint, how long will it take for
USDA to make a decision?

To the maximum extent practicable,
a final determination under these pro-
cedures will be issued within 180 days
after you have filed your request.

§ 15f.4 What do certain words and
phrases in these regulations mean?

Agency means the USDA agency, of-
fice, or committee that the complain-
ant alleges has discriminated against
the complainant in the administration
of a covered program.

ALJ means an Administrative Law
Judge appointed pursuant to the Ad-
ministrative Procedure Act (5 U.S.C.
557(b)(3), 3105) who presides over a hear-
ing if requested by a complainant.

ASA means the Assistant Secretary
for Administration.

Complainant means a person who re-
quests that USDA consider his or her
complaint under the procedures of this
part.
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Complaint means a written document
filed with USDA by a person alleging
discrimination by USDA under a cov-
ered program.

Covered program means:
(1) A farm ownership, farm operating,

or emergency loan funded from the Ag-
ricultural Credit Insurance Program
Account;

(2) A housing program established
under title V of the Housing Act of
1949; or

(3) A commodity program or disaster
assistance program.

Director means the Director of USDA,
OCR, or his or her subordinate des-
ignee.

Docketing clerk means an employee of
the USDA Office of Civil Rights, des-
ignated to serve in this capacity.

Eligible complaint means a complaint
that was filed with the Department of
Agriculture before July 1, 1997, and
that alleges discrimination occurring
at any time during the period begin-
ning on January 1, 1981 and ending De-
cember 31, 1996—

(1) In violation of the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act (15 U.S.C. 1691 et seq.)
in administering—

(i) A farm ownership, farm operating,
or emergency loan funded from the Ag-
ricultural Credit Insurance Program
Account; or

(ii) A housing program established
under title V of the Housing Act of
1949; or

(2) In the administration of a com-
modity program or a disaster assist-
ance program.

Ex parte communication means a pro-
hibited communication between a
party to a proceeding and the ALJ out-
side of the presence of, or without no-
tice to, the other parties to the pro-
ceeding, as explained more fully in
§ 15f.13.

Final determination means the final
USDA decision made on your com-
plaint under these rules.

Hearing means a proceeding in which
you may present your case before the
ALJ.

Interested party means a person, other
than the complainant, OCR, and the
agency, who has an interest in a pro-
ceeding under these rules and is admit-
ted to the proceeding under § 15f.20.

OCR means the USDA Office of Civil
Rights.

Party or parties means the complain-
ant, OCR, the agency, or a person ad-
mitted to the proceeding as an inter-
ested party.

Secretary means the Secretary of Ag-
riculture.

Section 741 means section 741 of the
Agriculture, Rural Development, Food
and Drug Administration, and Related
Agencies Appropriations Act, 1999, en-
acted in Division A, section 101(a) of
the Omnibus Consolidated and Emer-
gency Supplemental Appropriations
Act, 1999, Pub. L. 105–277.

Section 741 Complaint Request (or Re-
quest) means a request by a complain-
ant to consider his complaint under
these rules.

USDA means the United States De-
partment of Agriculture.

Subpart B—I Filed A Complaint
With USDA Prior To July 1,
1997, How Do I Request That
USDA Consider My Complaint
Using These Procedures?

§ 15f.5 How do I request that USDA
consider my complaint under these
procedures?

In order for USDA to consider your
complaint under these procedures, a
Section 741 Complaint Request must be
docketed with the Docketing Clerk in
the USDA OCR.

(a) Do I have to file a ‘‘Section 741 Com-
plaint Request’’ if USDA is already work-
ing on my complaint? Do I have to file
again? If USDA OCR already reviewed
or is working on your complaint, you
will receive a notice by March 1, 1999,
indicating that your complaint auto-
matically has been docketed as a Sec-
tion 741 Complaint Request for consid-
eration under these procedures. The
notice will provide you with the docket
number assigned your Request and will
give you further instructions with re-
spect to what options you have or what
actions you must take.

(b) What if USDA is not working on my
complaint? If I think USDA has reviewed
or is working on my complaint, but do not
receive a letter by March 1, 1999, what
should I do? If USDA is not already
working on your complaint, or you do
not receive a letter from USDA by
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March 1, 1999, or within 30 days there-
after, you should file a Section 741
Complaint Request with the Docketing
Clerk at USDA OCR.

(c) How long do I have to file my Sec-
tion 741 Complaint Request? You have
until October 21, 2000 to file your Sec-
tion 741 Complaint Request.

§ 15f.6 What must I say or include in
my Section 741 Complaint Request?

If you must file a Section 741 Com-
plaint Request, it should include a
copy of your original complaint, a re-
quest in writing that USDA consider
the complaint in accordance with these
procedures, a statement as to when
your complaint was filed with USDA,
and any other evidence you consider
necessary to prove that your complaint
is an eligible complaint suitable for
consideration under these procedures.

§ 15f.7 May I be represented by an at-
torney?

(a) If your Section 741 Complaint Re-
quest is automatically docketed as set
forth in § 15f.5(a), and you already are
represented by counsel of whom you
have notified USDA, then this section
does not apply.

(b) If you are filing your Section 741
Complaint Request with USDA, and if
you are represented by an attorney,
your Section 741 Complaint Request
should also include an authorization
signed by you indicating that the at-
torney is entitled to represent you on
your behalf. If USDA receives such an
authorization, all documents in con-
nection with consideration of your
complaint under these procedures will
be sent to your attorney and not to
you.

(c) Once your Section 741 Complaint
Request is docketed with USDA, and
you afterwards retain an attorney, you
should forward an authorization to
USDA signed by you indicating that
the attorney is entitled to represent
you on your behalf. If USDA receives
such an authorization, all documents
in connection with consideration of
your complaint under these procedures
will be sent to your attorney and not
to you.

Subpart C—What Happens After I
Send In My Section 741 Com-
plaint Request? May I Seek to
Resolve My Complaint Infor-
mally With OCR?

§ 15f.8 What does the Docketing Clerk
do with my Section 741 Complaint
Request?

All Section 741 Complaint Requests
docketed by the OCR Docketing Clerk
will be referred to the Director for an
informal review. The Director will de-
termine if the complaint is one that
can be resolved informally, and, if so,
the Director will seek to resolve the
complaint informally with the com-
plainant.

§ 15f.9 What will the Director do to set-
tle my Section 741 Complaint Re-
quest when it is received?

The Director will review each Sec-
tion 741 Complaint Request. If the Di-
rector finds that your complaint is an
eligible complaint, the Director will:
review all documents and evidence sub-
mitted by you; review all agency or
OCR files, if any exist, regarding the
circumstances surrounding the alleged
discrimination; review any damage
claims; and seek any further clarifica-
tion, if necessary, from either you or
the agency. OCR also may refer your
eligible complaint for a formal inves-
tigation by the OCR, Program Inves-
tigation Division or by an outside con-
tractor. Based on his or her review, the
Director will either undertake negotia-
tions with you to resolve the com-
plaint; or inform you that OCR will not
settle the complaint and explain to you
your options, including your right to
pursue formal proceedings before an
ALJ under subpart D. If the complaint
is successfully resolved or settled, the
Director will issue a final determina-
tion disposing of the matter.

§ 15f.10 What if I do not want the Di-
rector to review my Section 741
Complaint Request and I want to
proceed directly to a hearing?

If you do not want the Director to re-
view your Section 741 Complaint Re-
quest, you may request a hearing fol-
lowing the procedures below in subpart
D. You may request a hearing at any

VerDate 12<JAN>99 08:30 Jan 22, 1999 Jkt 183010 PO 00000 Frm 00409 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\183010T.XXX N22PT1 PsN: 183010T



414

7 CFR Subtitle A (1–1–99 Edition)§ 15f.11

time during informal review or nego-
tiations with the Director, or at any
time during USDA consideration of
your Section 741 Complaint Request.

Subpart D—If I Request A Hearing,
What Will Happen? How Will
The Hearing Be Conducted?

§ 15f.11 Where must I file a hearing re-
quest and what happens to it?

If you desire a hearing, you must file
a request for a hearing with the Dock-
eting Clerk, citing the docket number
assigned to your Section 741 Complaint
Request. When the Docketing Clerk re-
ceives your request for a hearing, your
Section 741 Complaint Request will be
assigned to an ALJ. The Docketing
Clerk will send a notice of your hearing
request to OCR and the agency, notify-
ing them of the docket number and the
assigned ALJ. The Docketing Clerk
also will send you a notice of receipt of
the hearing request that will inform
you of the name of the assigned ALJ.

§ 15f.12 Am I entitled to a hearing in
all circumstances?

Under section 741, you have a right to
a hearing as part of the process for
USDA to render a final determination
on your eligible complaint. However, if
at any time the ALJ determines that
your complaint is not an eligible com-
plaint, he or she may dismiss your
complaint with a final determination
and USDA review of your complaint
will then have been completed. You
also are not entitled to a hearing if
there are no material issues of fact in
dispute between you and USDA. In
other words, if the only dispute re-
maining is a question of law, you will
not receive a hearing and the ALJ will
make a final determination under
§ 15f.16.

§ 15f.13 What is the function of the
ALJ and who may communicate
with him?

(a) What are the powers of the ALJ?
The ALJ is responsible for conducting
a hearing at your request on your Sec-
tion 741 Complaint Request. He or she
will have all powers prescribed in these
rules and will make a proposed deter-
mination on your complaint. The pro-
posed determination then will become

the final determination after 35 days,
unless the ASA reviews the proposed
determination.

(b) What is an ex parte communication?
An ex parte communication is a com-
munication by one party to a proceed-
ing with the ALJ outside of the pres-
ence of, or without notice to, the other
parties to a proceeding. Ex parte com-
munications in the proceedings on your
complaint are prohibited and will be
handled as follows:

(1) The ALJ will not engage in ex
parte communications regarding the
merits of a complaint with any party
or with any person having any interest
in the proceedings on the complaint,
including OCR and any person in an ad-
vocacy or investigative capacity, at
any time between the assignment of a
hearing to him or her and the issuance
of a proposed determination. This pro-
hibition does not apply to:

(i) Discussions of procedural matters
related to the complaint; or

(ii) Discussions of the merits of the
complaint where all parties to the pro-
ceeding on the complaint have been
given notice and an opportunity to par-
ticipate.

(2) In the case of a communication
described in paragraph (b)(1)(ii) of this
section, a memorandum of any such
discussion shall be included in the
hearing record.

(3) No party to the proceeding or
other interested person shall make or
knowingly cause to be made to the
ALJ an ex parte communication rel-
evant to the merits of the complaint.

(4) If the ALJ receives an ex parte
communication in violation of this sec-
tion, the ALJ will place in the written
record:

(i) All such written communications;
(ii) Memoranda stating the substance

of all such oral communications; and
(iii) All written responses to such

communications, and memoranda stat-
ing the substance of any oral responses
to such communications.

(c) Upon receipt of a communication
knowingly made or knowingly caused
to be made by a party in violation of
this section the ALJ may, to the ex-
tent consistent with the interests of
justice and the policy underlying these
proceedings, require the party or other
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interested person making the commu-
nication to show cause why such par-
ty’s claim or interest in the complaint
should not be dismissed, denied, dis-
regarded, or otherwise adversely af-
fected on account of such violation.

§ 15f.14 What happens after I file a re-
quest for a hearing?

Within 20 days after you have filed
your request for a hearing, ALJ shall
file with the Docketing Clerk a notice
stating the time, place, and manner of
the hearing. The ALJ will have due re-
gard for the public interest and the
convenience and necessity of the par-
ties in determining the time, place, and
manner of the hearing. The notice will
state whether the hearing will be con-
ducted by telephone, audiovisual tele-
communication, or personal attend-
ance of any individual expected to par-
ticipate in the hearing. The Docketing
Clerk will send copies of the notice to
the complainant and to all other par-
ties to the proceeding.

§ 15f.15 What happens after the Dock-
eting Clerk notifies all parties?

The first step in this process involves
a response to your hearing request by
OCR. OCR will turn over its entire file
on your complaint to the ALJ. OCR
also will file a report with the ALJ
stating its position with respect to
whether or not your complaint is an el-
igible complaint, with reasons for its
position, as well as stating its position
with respect to the merits of your com-
plaint. OCR must turn over its file and
make its report on its position on your
complaint within 35 days. OCR must
provide a copy to you of anything it
provides to the ALJ.

§ 15f.16 Although I request a hearing,
may I request the ALJ to issue a de-
cision without a hearing?

(a) At any time after the parties have
been notified of your hearing request,
you may file a request with the ALJ to
make a determination based on the
written record. With your request, you
should file any other arguments or evi-
dence that you wish the ALJ to con-
sider. The agency and OCR will have 35
days after you file your request to file
any additional information, argu-
ments, or evidence for the consider-

ation of the ALJ. The ALJ may rec-
ommend dismissal of your complaint
on the basis of a finding that it is not
an eligible complaint; recommend de-
nial of your eligible complaint on the
merits; or make a proposed finding of
discrimination on your eligible com-
plaint and recommend to award you
such relief as would be afforded under
the applicable statute or regulation
under which the eligible complaint was
filed. The ALJ will make a proposed
determination on your complaint based
on the original complaint, the Section
741 Complaint Request, the OCR report,
and any other evidence or written doc-
uments filed by the parties. The pro-
posed determination will become the
final determination 35 days after it is
filed unless you request review of the
proposed determination by the ASA.
The ASA also may review the proposed
determination on his or her own initia-
tive. If the ASA reviews the decision,
he or she will allow the parties a rea-
sonable opportunity to file briefs in
support of or opposition to the pro-
posed determination, and afterwards
will issue a final determination within
35 days after you request review of the
proposed determination.

(b) To the maximum extent prac-
ticable, a final determination will be
made within 180 days of your filing of
the Section 741 Complaint Request.

§ 15f.17 What happens before the hear-
ing?

(a) Do I need to file another answer or
pre-hearing brief? You may file a pre-
hearing brief in support of your com-
plaint.

(b) Will there be a pre-hearing con-
ference? The ALJ may hold a pre-hear-
ing conference. If such a conference is
to be held, the notice of the pre-hear-
ing conference also will contain a no-
tice to the parties of a time and date
for the pre-hearing conference. Pre-
hearing conferences normally will be
held by telephone. Issues that may be
addressed at the pre-hearing con-
ference may include: simplification of
the issues; the possibility of obtaining
stipulations of fact and of the authen-
ticity of documents; limitation of the
number of witnesses; exchange of cop-
ies of hearing exhibits; negotiation,
compromise or settlement of issues;
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identification of documents of which
official notice will be requested; a
schedule for completion of the actions
decided upon at the conference; and
any other matters that may aid and ex-
pedite the conclusion of the proceed-
ing. No transcript of the pre-hearing
conference will be made but the ALJ
will issue a written memorandum sum-
marizing the results of the pre-hearing
conference.

(c) What else may the ALJ ask for be-
fore the hearing? Prior to the hearing,
the ALJ may require each of the par-
ties to furnish any or all of the follow-
ing: an outline of a party’s position
with respect to the complaint, the
facts upon which the party intends to
rely, the legal theories upon which the
party intends to rely, copies of or a list
of the documents and exhibits which
the party anticipates on introducing at
the hearing, and a list of anticipated
witnesses.

§ 15f.18 May I depose potential wit-
nesses?

(a) A party may request an order
from the ALJ to take the testimony of
any person by deposition upon oral ex-
amination or written interrogatories
before any officer authorized to admin-
ister oaths at the place of examination,
for use as evidence. The application for
the order must specify the reason and
need for taking testimony by deposi-
tion.

(b) The time, place, and manner of
taking depositions will be as mutually
agreed by the parties, or failing agree-
ment, by order of the ALJ.

(c) No testimony taken by deposi-
tions will be considered as part of the
evidence in the hearing until such tes-
timony is offered and received in evi-
dence at the hearing, and ordinarily it
will not be received into evidence if the
deponent is present and can testify at
the hearing. However, when the depo-
nent is present and can testify, the
deposition may be used to contradict
or impeach the testimony of the depo-
nent given at the hearing. Where you
have requested a final determination
by the ALJ based on the written record
without a hearing, the ALJ, in his or
her discretion, may receive depositions
to supplement the record.

(d) Each party will bear its own ex-
penses associated with the taking of
any deposition.

§ 15f.19 Other than myself, OCR, and
the agency, may any other inter-
ested party participate in the pro-
ceeding?

In most cases, there will be no par-
ties to a proceeding under these rules,
other than the complainant, OCR, and,
and if it so desires, the agency. How-
ever, if there are circumstances in
which additional parties have an inter-
est in the proceeding, such as a bank
which participated in a case involving
a guaranteed loan, such other inter-
ested parties may be permitted to par-
ticipate in the proceeding at the dis-
cretion of the ALJ.

§ 15f.20 May I subpoena witnesses to
the hearings?

No. USDA has no statutory authority
to subpoena witnesses to testify at the
hearing.

§ 15f.21 What rules are applicable to
the actual conduct of the hearing?

(a) Who may appear at the hearing?
You may appear at the hearing in per-
son or through your attorney. OCR or
the agency will appear through a des-
ignated representative, which may in-
clude a USDA attorney. Any person
who appears as counsel must conform
to the standards of ethical conduct re-
quired of practitioners before the
courts of the United States.

(b) What happens if I fail to show up?
If, after having received notice of the
hearing under § 15f.14, you fail to ap-
pear at the hearing without good
cause, you will have waived your right
to a hearing in the proceeding and the
ALJ may proceed to issue a final deter-
mination based on the written record
as provided for under § 15f.16.

(c) Which party presents its case first at
the hearing? You, as the complainant,
will proceed first at the proceeding, un-
less otherwise determined by the ALJ.

(d) What kind of evidence will be admit-
ted and how will it be handled? (1) In
general. The hearing will be conducted
by the ALJ in the manner he or she de-
termines most likely to obtain the
facts relevant to the matter or matters
at issue. The ALJ may confine the
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presentation of facts and evidence to
pertinent matters and exclude irrele-
vant, immaterial, or unduly repetitious
evidence, information, or questions.
Each party will have the opportunity
to present oral and documentary evi-
dence, oral testimony of witnesses, and
arguments in support of the party’s po-
sition; controvert evidence relied on by
any other party; and question all wit-
nesses. The testimony of witnesses at a
hearing will be on oath or affirmation
and will be subject to cross-examina-
tion. Any evidence may be received by
the ALJ without regard to whether
that evidence could be admitted in ju-
dicial proceedings. Upon a finding of
good cause, the ALJ may order that
any witness be examined separately
and apart from all other witnesses ex-
cept those who may be parties to the
proceeding.

(2) Objections. (i) If a party objects to
the admission of any evidence or to the
limitation of the scope of any examina-
tion or cross-examination or to any
other ruling of the ALJ, the party
must state briefly the grounds of such
objection.

(ii) Only objections made before the
ALJ may subsequently be relied upon
in the proceeding.

(3) Depositions. The deposition of any
witness will be admitted in the manner
provided in and subject to the provi-
sions of § 15f.18(c) of these rules.

(4) Exhibits. Unless the ALJ finds that
the furnishing of copies is impractica-
ble, two copies of each exhibit must be
filed with the ALJ. A party submitting
an exhibit must provide every other
party (except interested parties) a copy
of the exhibit one week before the
hearing. A true copy of an exhibit may
be substituted for the original.

(5) Official records or documents. An of-
ficial government record or document
or entry therein, if admissible for any
purpose, will be admissible in evidence
without the production of the person
who made or prepared the same, and
will be prima facie evidence of the rel-
evant facts stated therein. Such record
or document must be evidenced by an
official publication thereof or a copy
certified by a person having legal au-
thority to make such certification.

(6) Official notice. Official notice will
be taken of such matters as are judi-

cially noted by the courts of the United
States and of any other matter of tech-
nical, scientific, or commercial fact of
established character if the parties are
given adequate notice of matters so no-
ticed, and the parties will be given ade-
quate opportunity to show that such
facts are erroneously noticed.

(7) Offer of proof. Whenever evidence
is excluded by the ALJ, the party offer-
ing such evidence may make an offer of
proof, which must be included in the
transcript. The offer of proof should
consist of a brief statement describing
the evidence excluded. If the evidence
consists of a brief oral statement, it
must be included in the transcript in
its entirety. If the evidence consists of
an exhibit, it must be marked for iden-
tification and inserted in the hearing
record.

(8) Interlocutory review. Interlocutory
review of rulings by the ALJ will not
be permitted.

(9) Transcript or recording. (i) Hearings
to be conducted by telephone will be
recorded verbatim by electronic re-
cording device. Hearings conducted by
audio-visual telecommunication or by
the personal attendance of parties and
witnesses must be transcribed, unless
the ALJ finds that recording the hear-
ing verbatim would expedite the pro-
ceeding and the ALJ orders the hearing
to be recorded verbatim. The ALJ must
certify that to the best of his or her
knowledge and belief any recording
made pursuant to this paragraph with
exhibits that were accepted into evi-
dence is the record of the hearing.

(ii) If a hearing is recorded verbatim,
a party requests the transcript of a
hearing or part of a hearing, and the
ALJ determines that the disposition of
the proceeding would be expedited by a
transcript of the hearing or part of a
hearing, the ALJ shall order the ver-
batim transcription of the recording as
requested by the party.

(iii) The costs of transcription or ver-
batim recordings will be paid for by
USDA and charged to the agency whose
action gave rise to the complaint at
issue. Copies of recordings or tran-
scripts of hearings will be made avail-
able to any party at the actual cost of
duplication.

VerDate 12<JAN>99 08:30 Jan 22, 1999 Jkt 183010 PO 00000 Frm 00413 Fmt 8010 Sfmt 8010 Y:\SGML\183010T.XXX N22PT1 PsN: 183010T



418

7 CFR Subtitle A (1–1–99 Edition)§ 15f.22

§ 15f.22 What happens after the hear-
ing?

The ALJ will fix a reasonable time
for filing posthearing briefs, proposed
findings of fact and conclusions of law,
and if permitted, reply briefs. Briefs
should include a summary of evidence
relied upon together with references to
exhibit numbers and citations to the
transcript and authorities relied upon.
Briefs must be filed with the Docketing
Clerk with copies to all parties.

§ 15f.23 What will constitute the
record for the final determination?

The original complaint, the Section
741 Complaint Request, the OCR report,
the agency answer, the transcript of
testimony, exhibits, affidavits, deposi-
tions, briefs, memoranda of law, and all
pleadings, motions, papers, and re-
quests filed in the proceeding, includ-
ing rulings, and the proposed deter-
mination by an ALJ (if applicable)
shall constitute the exclusive record
for the final determination.

§ 15f.24 When and in what form will a
final determination be made on my
complaint by USDA?

(a) The ALJ will make a proposed de-
termination orally at the close of a
hearing, or in writing within 35 days.
The ALJ may recommend dismissal of
your complaint on the basis of a find-
ing that it is not an eligible complaint;
recommend denial of your eligible com-
plaint on the merits; or make a pro-
posed finding of discrimination on your
eligible complaint and recommend to
award you such relief as would be af-
forded under the applicable statute or
regulation under which the eligible
complaint was filed. The proposed de-
termination will become the final de-
termination 35 days after it is made,
unless you request review of the pro-
posed determination by the ASA. The
ASA also may review the proposed de-
termination on his or her own initia-
tive. If the ASA reviews the proposed
determination, he or she will allow the
parties a reasonable opportunity to file
briefs in support or opposition to the
proposed determination, and after-
wards file a final determination within

35 days after you request review of the
proposed determination.

(b) To the maximum extent prac-
ticable, a final determination will be
filed within 180 days after you filed
your Section 741 Complaint Request.

§ 15f.25 Will USDA pay my attorneys
fees if I win?

If you prevail on your eligible com-
plaint, either in whole or in part, after
a proceeding before an ALJ under the
procedures in this subpart, you may be
eligible for an award of attorneys fees
as a prevailing party under the Equal
Access to Justice Act (EAJA), 5 U.S.C.
504. To get an EAJA award, you must
file an application for such fees with
the ALJ within 30 days after the final
determination is made. Instructions for
filing an EAJA application and obtain-
ing an EAJA award are contained in 7
CFR part 1, subpart J. The ALJ must
follow those rules, and not these Sec-
tion 741 Complaint Request rules, in
making any EAJA award.

Subpart E—What If I Do Not Agree
With The Final Determination
by USDA?

§ 15f.26 May I seek judicial review of
the final determination?

Section 741 provides that you have at
least 180 days after a final determina-
tion denying your eligible complaint
under these rules to seek judicial re-
view in the United States Court of Fed-
eral Claims or a United States District
Court of competent jurisdiction.

Subpart F—How Do I Count Days
For Purposes Of Deadlines
and What Happens If I Miss A
Deadline In These Rules?

§ 15f.27 When is something considered
‘‘filed’’ as required by these rules
and to whom do I need to give cop-
ies of what I file?

A document, or other item, that
must be ‘‘filed’’ under these rules is
considered filed when postmarked or
when it is received and date-stamped
by the Docketing Clerk.
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§ 15f.28 When I or someone else has to
do something within a certain num-
ber of days, how will USDA or the
ALJ count the days?

Unless otherwise specifically noted, a
‘‘day’’ refers to a calendar day and a
document that must be filed by a cer-
tain date must either be postmarked
on that date or received by the Docket-
ing Clerk on that date. For documents
that must be or are ‘‘filed’’ under these
regulations, you count the number of
days after filing starting with the day
after the filing date as day one. For
other time periods, you calculate the
time period by counting the day after
receipt by the party as day one. If the
last day of a time period expires on a
Saturday, a Sunday, or a Federal holi-
day, the last day of the time period
will expire on the next business day.

§ 15f.29 May I request an extension of
a deadline or may I get relief for
missing a deadline in these rules?

You may request that the ALJ ex-
tend a deadline in these rules, or afford
you relief for missing a deadline, which
he or she may do, consistent with the
principles of sovereign immunity, the
terms of any applicable statute, these
rules, and the necessity of expeditious
completion of the public business. It is
the intent of USDA that the time dead-
lines expressed in these regulations be
construed equitably to ensure resolu-
tion of eligible complaints, to the ex-
tent permitted by law.

PART 16 [RESERVED]

PART 17—SALES OF AGRICULTURAL
COMMODITIES MADE AVAILABLE
UNDER TITLE I OF THE AGRICUL-
TURAL TRADE DEVELOPMENT
AND ASSISTANCE ACT OF 1954,
AS AMENDED

Sec.
17.1 General.
17.2 Definition of terms.
17.3 Purchase authorizations.
17.4 Agents of the participant or importer.
17.5 Contracts between commodity suppli-

ers and importers.
17.6 Discounts, fees, commissions and pay-

ments.
17.7 Notice of sale procedures.
17.8 Ocean transportation.
17.9 CCC payment to suppliers.

17.10 Refunds and insurance.
17.11 Recordkeeping and access to records.

AUTHORITY: 7 U.S.C. 1701–1704, 1731–1736b,
1736f, 5676; E.O. 12220, 45 FR 44245.

SOURCE: 62 FR 52932, Oct. 10, 1997, unless
otherwise noted.

§ 17.1 General.
(a) What this part covers. This part

contains the regulations governing the
financing of the sale and exportation of
agricultural commodities by the Com-
modity Credit Corporation (CCC),
through private trade channels to the
maximum extent practicable, under
the authority of title I of the Agricul-
tural Trade Development and Assist-
ance Act of 1954, as amended (herein-
after called ‘‘the Act’’).

(b) Agricultural commodities agree-
ments. (1) Under the Act, the Govern-
ment of the United States enters into
Agricultural Commodities Agreements
with governments of foreign countries
or with private entities. These agree-
ments cover financing of the sale and
exportation of agricultural commod-
ities, including certain ocean transpor-
tation costs.

(2) Agricultural Commodities Agree-
ments may provide that a participant
will repay CCC for the financing ex-
tended by CCC either in dollars or in
local currencies.

(3) A private entity must maintain a
bona fide business office in the United
States and have a person, principal, or
agent on whom service of judicial proc-
ess may be had in the United States
unless the General Sales Manager de-
termines that there are adequate as-
surances of repayment to CCC for the
financing extended by CCC.

(c) Purchase authorizations. This part
covers, among other things, the
issuance by the General Sales Manager
of purchase authorizations which au-
thorize the participant to:

(1) Purchase agricultural commod-
ities; and

(2) Procure ocean transportation
therefor.

(d) Financing. For amounts to be fi-
nanced by CCC, CCC will pay the sup-
plier of commodity or of ocean trans-
portation in accordance with
§ 17.9(a)(3). The cost of ocean freight or
ocean freight differential will be fi-
nanced by CCC only when specifically
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